
 
KITTERY PORT AUTHORITY 

TOWN HALL 
200 ROGERS RD. 

KITTERY, ME 03904 
 

Meeting Agenda 
October 6, 2022 

                                            6:00 P.M. 
                                                  
1. Call to Order / Attendance 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Agenda Amendments and Adoption 

4. Acceptance of Previous Minutes: August 4, 2022 

5. Harbormaster Report and Budget Report 

6. All Items involving Town Officials or Invited Guests  

a. Welcome town attorney, Mr. Cameron Ferrante 

7. Public Hearing 

a. The Kittery Port Authority moves to hold a public hearing and approve an 
application from SHM Kittery Point, 48 Bowen Road, Kittery, ME 03904 (Map 17, 
Lot 10) for the conversion of 28 single point moorings in the Back Channel into 
twelve (12) 8’ x 80’ floats and one (1) 8’ x 160’ float. Agents is Sandra Guay 
Archipelago Law, LLP.   

8. Piers, Wharves & Floats 

      9.   Public Segment (Three Mins.) 

     10.  Unfinished Business 

     11.  New Business  

            a. Election of Acting Vice Chair  
     12.  Committee and Other Reports 

     13. Communications from the Chairperson  

     14.  Board Member Issues or Comments 

     15.  Executive Session 

     16.  Adjournment 

Phone: 207-439-0452 ext 301 
Email:kpa@kitteryme.org 
http://www.kitteryme.gov/ 

 

http://www.kitteryme.gov/


1 | P a g e  
 

PORT AUTHORITY MEETING                                  UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

       COUNCIL CHAMBERS                                              AUGUST 4, 2022                 

 

1. Call to Order / Attendance 1 

Vice Chair Patten called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. 2 

Members present: Vice Chair Patten, Steve Lawrence, John McCollett, Bryan Bush, 3 
Niles Pinkham and Alan Johnston. Members absent: Chair Philbrook. 4 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 5 

3. Agenda Amendments and Adoption 6 

Vice Chair Patten cast one vote to approve the agenda as written. 7 

4. Acceptance of Previous Minutes: July 7, 2022 8 

All were in favor of the July 7, 2022 minutes as written. 9 

5. Harbormaster Report and Budget Report 10 

The Harbormaster assisted a vessel in distress in the area of the 95 Bridge during a 11 
strong tide. The vessel was having mechanical issues causing handling issues. He took 12 
the family off the boat and escorted the captain to the docks where the boat was hauled 13 
for repairs. 14 

Chuck Moran did a check of Brave Boat Harbor, there were 13 boats on the bar and 15 
approximately 47 people. Chuck found evidence of clamming but no clams visible 16 
among the people or boats. 17 

The Harbormaster did several parking/fishing ordinance overnight checks between 1am 18 
and 4am. He found some fishing without licenses, during one of the checks, he found 19 
that 2 resident vehicles had squid ink on them. These vehicles were parked in the 20 
resident parking areas facing the ramp. The Harbormaster was approached by a 21 
mooring holder who last year would park there to spend the night on their boat but 22 
would find ink or damage to their vehicle the next morning, so they don’t park there any 23 
longer. The Harbormaster stated he will request that the KPA change the fishing 24 
ordinance to prohibit fishing in the area between the dumpster and the parking spot next 25 
to the HM office. 26 

The Harbormaster responded to several floating objects in the river/back channel that 27 
were navigational hazards, these hazards include telephone poles, docks, large 28 
structural timber among other items. 29 

The Harbormaster responded to a report of a vessel on the rocks at Hicks Rock, he 30 
found the vessel had not run aground, but rather got a lobster trap line and buoy 31 



2 | P a g e  
 

wrapped in the propeller. They were able to clear the line and got underway without 32 
incident. 33 

The Harbormaster responded to a vessel adrift in the area off Captains Way Gerrish 34 
Island, he found a vessel and towed it back to the docks. He also found that the bow 35 
line knot had come undone while the vessel was on mooring in Pepperrell Cove. He 36 
reported there was no damage and he contacted the owner who brought the vessel 37 
back to the mooring. 38 

Deputy Harbormasters Moran/Valenti conducted mooring occupancy inventories of 39 
Pepperrell Cove, Chauncey Creek and the lower portion of the Back Channel. 40 

The Harbormaster responded to a sailboat taking on water in the area of 2KR. He found 41 
that the 35-foot sailboat had approximately 4 feet of water in it. The wind and seas were 42 
increasing so they notified the Coast Guard and TowboatUS that they were going to 43 
dewater the boat and tow the vessel in. The Harbormaster towed the boat into safer 44 
waters and turned it over to TowboatUS. The Harbormaster wanted to thank the NH 45 
Marine Patrol for providing a security zone while they had the vessel in tow and 46 
pumping it out.  47 

The 21-foot Harbormaster’s boat had outboard problems while responding to a dock 48 
floating down the main river, so the Harbormaster called Gunnar Ek to tow the dock in 49 
as well as follow them back to Pepperrell Cove.  50 

The Harbormaster repaired the scuppers in the 21ft Harbormaster’s boat as the flappers 51 
were not closing and would not bail properly.  52 

The Harbormaster repaired the safety railing along the wall that was damaged.  53 

The Harbormaster reported that he is getting a new stainless-steel ladder for next to the 54 
hoist, it was fabricated, delivered and will hopefully be installed next week.  55 

The Harbormaster reported the total recorded underway hours for patrol on HM boats 56 
(not including several in the back channel that he was notified of, but not called into 57 
dispatch, to be put in the log during the early part of the month). -122 hours. 58 



3 | P a g e  
 

 59 

 60 
6. All Items involving Town Officials or Invited Guests 61 

OBJECT ACCT DESCRIPTION
CURRENT YEAR 

BUDGET

CURRENT 
YEAR 

EXPENSE

CURRENT YEAR 
REMAINING

PERCENT 
USED

64010 HARBOR MASTER FULL TIME SALARI 65,162.00$         5,233.75$      59,928.25$        8.03
64020 PART TIME SALARIES 26,967.00$         6,771.34$      20,195.66$        25.11
65010 POSTAGE 250.00$               -$                 250.00$              0.00
65020 TELEPHONE & INTERNET 2,000.00$           111.85$          1,888.15$          5.59
65200 ELECTRICITY 2,016.00$           -$                 2,016.00$          0.00
65220 WATER 515.00$               -$                 515.00$              0.00
65240 DUMPSTERS/TRASH REMOVAL 1,000.00$           213.12$          786.88$              21.31
65305 BOAT EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 3,500.00$           155.59$          3,344.41$          4.45
65310 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 1,000.00$           -$                 1,000.00$          0.00
65311 GAS, GREASE, & OIL 2,250.00$           -$                 2,250.00$          0.00
65462 RIGGING 12,000.00$         812.48$          11,187.52$        6.77
65463 SANITATION 2,000.00$           331.24$          1,668.76$          16.56
65470 PROFESSIONAL  DEVELOPMENT 1,500.00$           -$                 1,500.00$          0.00
65480 OTHER PROFESSIONAL/CONTRACTED 3,000.00$           1,360.00$      1,640.00$          45.33
65500 MAIN BLDG/GROUNDS WHARVES/HARB 5,500.00$           418.11$          5,081.89$          7.60
65521 UNIFORMS 1,300.00$           626.95$          673.05$              48.23
66010 OFFICE SUPPLIES 300.00$               -$                 300.00$              0.00
66040 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES & SERVICES 500.00$               85.76$            414.24$              17.15
TOTAL 130,760.00$      16,120.19$    114,639.81$     12.33%

FY 2023 YTD EXPENSES

OBJECT ACCT DESCRIPTION
 CURRENT 

YEAR BUDGET 

 CURRENT 
YEAR 

REVENUE 

 CURRENT 
YEAR 

DIFFERENCE 
PERCENT

43147 DINGHY FEES (11,000.00)$    (100.00)$        (10,900.00)$    0.91
43148 TRANSIENT SLIP RENTAL (8,000.00)$       (2,631.00)$    (5,369.00)$       32.89
43149 KPA APPLICATION FEES (500.00)$          -$                (500.00)$          0.00
43150 MOORING FEES (100,000.00)$  168.00$         (100,168.00)$  -0.17
43151 LAUNCH FEE (14,000.00)$    (4,834.00)$    (9,166.00)$       34.53
43152 TRANSIENT MOORING (8,000.00)$       (1,804.00)$    (6,196.00)$       22.55
43153 WAIT LIST FEE (1,000.00)$       (80.00)$          (920.00)$          8.00
43156 PIER USAGE FEE (2,400.00)$       (1,286.00)$    (1,114.00)$       53.58
43157 MOORING LATE FEE (1,000.00)$       -$                (1,000.00)$       0.00
43159 KAYAK RACK RENTAL (2,700.00)$       (118.00)$        (2,582.00)$       4.37
TOTAL (148,600.00)$  (10,685.00)$ (137,915.00)$  7.19%

FY 2023 YTD REVENUE



4 | P a g e  
 

7. Public Hearing 62 

a. The Kittery Port Authority moves to hold a public hearing and approve an application 63 
from The Brewster Family Irrevocable Trust, 7 Bond Road, Kittery Point, ME 03905 64 
(Map 25, Lot 1-A) for the construction of a 4’ x 24’ fixed wood pier, a 3’ x 30’ gangway 65 
and a 10’ x 20’ float secured by two helical moorings. Agent Steve Riker Ambit 66 
Engineering. 67 

Steve Riker from Ambit Engineering gave an overview of the project. 68 

Mr. Lawrence moved to approve the application from The Brewster Family Irrevocable 69 
Trust, 7 Bond Road, Kittery Point, ME 03905 (Map 25, Lot 1-A) for the construction of a 70 
4’ x 24’ fixed wood pier, a 3’ x 30’ gangway and a 10’ x 20’ float secured by two helical 71 
moorings, seconded by Mr. Johnston. 72 

Motion Carried 5-0-1 73 

Mr. Bush recused.  74 

b. The Kittery Port Authority moves to hold a public hearing and approve an application 75 
from SHM Kittery Point, 48 Bowen Road, Kittery, ME 03904 (Map 17, Lot 10) for the 76 
conversion of 28 single point moorings in the back channel into twelve (12) 8’ x 80’ 77 
floats and one (1) 8’ x 160’ float. Agents is Sandra Guay Archipelago Law, LLP. 78 

POSTPONED TO SEPTEMBER 1, 2022 79 

8.  Piers, Wharves & Floats - None 80 

9.  Public Segment (Three Mins.) – None 81 

10. Unfinished Business - None 82 

11. New Business - None 83 

12. Committee and Other Reports - None 84 

 a.  Communications from the Chairperson 85 

Vice Chair Patten spoke about two items, Chair Philbrook wanted the Vice Chair to 86 
bring to the board’s attention first was a letter from Allen Bretton, regarding wakes in the 87 
back channel and an application the KPA approved at 134 Whipple Road. 88 

13. Board Member Issues or Comments 89 

Mr. Lawrence – None 90 

Mr. Johnston – None 91 

Mr. Bush – None 92 

Mr. Pinkham spoke about the fishing on the Kittery Point bridge. 93 



5 | P a g e  
 

Mr. McCollett – None 94 

Vice Patten - None 95 

 14. Executive Session - None 96 

 15. Adjournment 97 

Mr. Lawrence moved to adjourn at 6:00 P.M., seconded by Mr. Johnston. 98 

All were in favor. 99 

 

Submitted by Kim Tackett 

Disclaimer: The following minutes constitute the author’s understanding of the meeting. 
Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of the information, the 
minutes are not intended as a verbatim transcript of comments at the meeting, but a 
summary of the discussion and actions that took place. For complete details, please 
refer to the video of the meeting on the Town of Kittery website. 



1 
19197483.8 

KITTERY MAINE PORT AUTHORITY 
 

 
FINDINGS OF FACT                 UNAPPROVED 
 
 
For: 48 Bowen Road, TAX MAP 17, LOT 10 
Re: Shoreland Development Plan Review: Piers, Wharfs, Floats and Other Marine-Related 
Structures 
 
  
 
 
WHEREAS, Owner and Applicant, SHM Kittery Point, LLC of 48 Bowen Road, Tax Map 17, 
Lot 10, located in the Commercial Fisheries/Maritime Uses Overlay Zone, submitted an 
application for Piers, Wharfs, Floats and other Marine-Related Structures, dated June 15, 2022 
(the “Application”), requesting to convert 28 single point moorings into Twelve (12) 8’ x 
80’floats and one (1) 8” x 160’ float (hereinafter, the “Development”); and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the procedures set forth in the Town of Kittery Code of Ordinances, 
the Kittery Port Authority (hereinafter, the “Port Authority”) deemed the Application complete 
at its July 7, 2022 hearing and placed the Application on its agenda for a public hearing on 
August 4, 2022, the public hearing was continued by agreement of the Applicant until October 
13, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Application and other documents considered to be a part of the Application for 
review by the Port Authority consist of: (1) an application for Piers, Wharfs, Floats and Other 
Marine-Related Structures, dated June 15, 2022; (2) agent authorization for Archipelago; (3) a 
copy of the Town of Kittery Tax Map for Tax Map 17, Lot 10; (4) a list of abutters to 48 Bowen 
Road; (5) a project narrative; (6) a recorded deed demonstrating the Applicant’s right, title or 
interest in 48 Bowen Road; (7) an aerial site plan; (8) a design showing the Applicant’s mooring 
construction and specifications; (9) an Army Corps of Engineers Authorization Letter, dated 
April 7, 2022; (10) published studies and surveys related to the environmental impacts of single 
point moorings; and (11) supplemental materials provided on September 15, 2022, including 
additional engineering documents for the proposed floats, a Town of Yarmouth mooring plan, 
letters of support from the community, and a letter authorizing the transfer of the Kittery Point 
Yacht Yard Corp. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers permit to the Applicant. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, based on the Application and materials before the Port Authority and 
pursuant to the applicable standards in the Land Use and Development Code and the Port 
Authority’s Rules and Regulations, the Port Authority makes the following factual findings and 
conclusions: 
 

  



2 
19197483.8 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS 
 

Port Authority Rules and Regulations, Waiver (§ 4.3.3) 
§ 4.3.3. The Port Authority may grant a waiver from the specifications of these regulations 
provided that the Port Authority finds that due to special circumstances of the specific 
application the granting of a waiver will not adversely impair the public health, safety and 
general welfare, the use of public waters, navigation, or harm the environment. All such waivers 
must be supported by sufficient findings of fact. 
 
Findings: The Application requests a waiver from the maximum float dimensions contained in 
Section 3.12.1.C for the purpose of constructing twelve 8’ x 80’ moored floats and one 8’ x 160’ 
moored float. 
 

C. Float size may not exceed 10’ x 24’ dimensions for commercial uses and 8’ x 24’ 
dimensions for recreational uses, unless otherwise permitted by the Port Authority. 

 
A. Special Circumstances: The Application indicates that the proposed moored floats would 

replace 28 single-point moorings.  The Application indicates that the floats must exceed 
the maximum size permitted to allow it to moor additional vessels at the floats and 
recover the capital costs of constructing and installing the floats. 

 
B. No Adverse Impact: The Application indicates that the moored floats would not take up 

any more space than the 28 single-point moorings that will be removed.  The Application 
has provided evidence that the moored floats will enable additional access to vessels by 
older or disabled boaters; provide a safer platform for vessel maintenance and boaters 
during adverse weather conditions; will offer more secure mooring locations for 
numerous vessels; and more clearly define the channel and reduce navigability issues 
created by swinging vessels, dinghies and launches on the existing single-point moorings.  
The Application has also provided evidence that the moored floats will be less harmful to 
the environment than the existing single-point moorings they will replace by reducing 
disturbances to the bottom and destruction of eelgrass habitats. 

Conclusion: The Application has satisfied the standard contained in Section 4.3.3 for the Port 
Authority to grant a waiver of the maximum float dimensions contained in Section 3.12.1.C for 
the construction of twelve (12) 8’ x 80’ moored floats and one (1) 8’ x 160’ moored float. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

 
Port Authority Rules and Regulations, Moored Floats (§ 3.12) 

§ 3.12.1.A. Moored floats are authorized only with the expressed permission of the Port Authority 
and only after receiving an Army Corps of Engineers Permit.  Permits are issued in accordance 
with Section 4 of these Rules and Regulations. 



3 
19197483.8 

Findings: The Application demonstrates that the Army Corps of Engineers have issued a permit 
for the Development. The Port Authority has [approved / denied] a waiver for the maximum size 
of the moored floats as proposed in the Application. 

Conclusion: The Development has obtained the necessary approvals from the Port Authority. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

§ 3.12.1.B. Floats are prohibited in Pepperell Cove. 

Findings: This standard is not applicable to the Application because the Development is not 
located in Pepperell Cove. 

Conclusion: N/A 

§ 3.12.1.C. Float size may not exceed 10’ x 24’ dimensions for commercial uses and 8’ x 24’ 
dimensions for recreational uses, unless otherwise permitted by the Port Authority. 

Findings: The Application requests to install moored floats with dimensions greater than those 
permitted for moored floats under Section 3.12,1.C and requests a waiver of the maximum 
moored float dimensions pursuant to Section 4.3.3 of the Port Authority Rules and Regulations. 
The Port Authority has [approved / denied] the Applicant’s request for a waiver. 
 

§ 4.3.3. The Port Authority may grant a waiver from the specifications of these 
regulations provided that the Port Authority finds that due to special circumstances of the 
specific application the granting of a waiver will not adversely impair the public health, 
safety and general welfare, the use of public waters, navigation, or harm the environment. 
All such waivers must be supported by sufficient findings of fact. 

 

Conclusion: This standard [has / has not] been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

§ 3.12.1.D. All floats are required to have a minimum of two (2) moorings. 

Findings: The Application indicates that all floats will be anchored by four granite anchors 
weighing at least 4,000 pounds. 

Conclusion: This standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

§ 3.12.1.E. All shackles and fasteners must be hot dipped galvanized steel and structurally sound 
and proportional in size to the chain use. 

Findings: The Application indicates that all shackles will consist of ¾ inch hot-dipped 
galvanized steel and all fasteners on the floats will consist of hot-dipped galvanized steel. 



4 
19197483.8 

Conclusion: The standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

§ 3.12.1.F. All floats must be identified with assigned registration numbers on both ends of the 
float in contrasting colors and be a minimum of three (3) inches in height. 

Findings: The Application indicates that all floats will be appropriately identified, and that the 
Applicant will comply with this requirement prior to placing any floats. 

Conclusion: This standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

§ 3.12.1.G. All floats must be buoyant so as not to become submerged at any time and must 
remain above water and visible at all times. 

Findings: The Application indicates that the purpose of the floats is to provide a mooring site for 
vessels that will at all times remain above water and visible.  The Application further indicates 
that the floats will consist of buoyant 40’ x 8’ floating platforms constructed using pressure 
treated lumber.  

Conclusion: This standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

§ 3.12.1.H. All gear, traps, fish and dunnage must be stored or secured so as not to be 
discharged or fall into the water or to pollute or to create a navigational hazard.  All fuel, foul 
waste, decaying matter and/or hazardous material must be removed promptly from the floats 
after use and disposed of properly. 

Findings: The Application does not address these requirements; however, the Applicant will 
ensure future compliance with these requirements. 

Conclusion: This standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

 
 

Town Code, Performance Standards (Code § 16.9.2(D)). Development involving piers, 
wharves, marinas and other uses projecting into water bodies must conform to the following 
standards: 



5 
19197483.8 

(1) In accordance with 38 M.R.S.A. § 435 et seq., mandatory shoreland zoning, all dimensional 
and other standards (excluding setbacks from water bodies) of this title apply to structures 
and uses projecting into a water body beyond the highest annual tide. 

(2) Boathouses, while convenient to locate near the water, are not considered functionally water-
dependent uses and must meet the same setback requirement as principal structures.  The 
State of Maine no longer issues permits for construction of boathouses below the highest 
annual tide due to the adverse environmental impact; therefore, new boathouses must be 
located on uplands. 

Findings: These standards are not applicable because the Application does not include a proposal 
to create any structures projecting beyond the highest annual tide or a boathouse. 

Conclusion: N/A 

(3) Only functionally water-dependent uses are allowed on, over or abutting a pier, wharf or 
other structure beyond the highest annual tide. 

Findings: The Application proposes to locate moored floats for the mooring of recreational and 
commercial vessels beyond the highest annual tide.  The Port Authority finds that this constitutes 
a functionally water-dependent use. 

Conclusion: This standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

(4) Access from shore must be developed on soils appropriate for such uses and constructed so as 
to control erosion. 

Findings: This standard is not applicable because the Application does not propose development 
of any access to the moored floats. 

Conclusion: N/A 

(5) The location must not interfere with existing developed recreational and maritime commerce 
or natural beach areas. 

Findings: The Application indicates that the moored floats will be located within the existing 
single-point mooring fields and outside of the existing channel.  As a result, the moored floats 
will not interfere with the navigability of the Back Channel or its use for recreational or maritime 
commerce. The moored floats will be accessed by existing facilities and will not affect access to 
or use of any natural beach areas.  The Applicant has demonstrated that the Development will not 
interfere with either existing recreational and maritime commerce or natural beach areas. 

Conclusion: This standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 



6 
19197483.8 

(6) The facility must be located so as to minimize adverse effects on fisheries. 

Findings: The Application indicates that the moored floats will each be anchored by four granite 
blocks with connecting chains under tension to minimize disturbance of the bottom. The 
installation of four anchor chains on each float decreases the risk of gear entanglement and gear 
loss within the Back Channel and the Applicant has provided evidence of the positive impact that 
the reduced use of single-point moorings within the Back Channel may have on existing eelgrass 
beds and associated marine life.  These positive impacts outweigh any adverse effects the 
proposed development may have on fisheries. As a result, the proposed development will 
minimize adverse effects on fisheries. 

Conclusion: This standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

(7) The facility must be a water-dependent use and no larger in dimension than necessary to 
carry on the activity and must be consistent with existing conditions, use and character of the 
area. 

Findings: The Port Authority has determined that the proposed Development is a functionally 
water-dependent use.  The dimensions of the moored floats, while significantly larger than 
existing single-point moorings and floats within the area, are consistent with and no larger than 
necessary to moor multiple vessels, as the Applicant proposes.  Additionally, the installation of 
moored floats is consistent with the existing conditions, use and character of the area as a single-
point mooring field.   

Conclusion: This standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

(8) No new structure may be built on, over or abutting a pier, wharf, dock or other structure 
extending beyond the highest annual tide of a water body or within a wetland unless the 
structure requires direct access to the water as an operational necessity. 

(9) No existing structures built on, over or abutting a pier, dock, wharf or other structure 
extending beyond the highest annual tide of a water body or within a wetland may be 
converted to residential dwelling units in any district. 

(10) Except in the Commercial Fisheries/Maritime Uses Overlay Zone, structures built on, 
over or abutting a pier, wharf, dock or other structure extending beyond the highest annual 
tide of a water body or within a wetland must not exceed 20 feet in height above the pier, 
wharf, dock or other structures. 

Findings: These standards are not applicable because the Application does not include any 
structures to be built on, over or abutting a pier, wharf, dock or other structure extending beyond 
the highest annual tide or within a wetland. 
Conclusion: N/A 



7 
19197483.8 

(11) Applicants proposing any construction or fill activities in a waterway or wetland 
requiring approval by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean 
Water Act, Section 9 of 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act, or Section 103 of the Marine 
Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act, must submit proof of a valid permit issued. 

Findings: The Applicant has provided an authorization from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
pursuant to Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act for the installation of the Development. 

Conclusion: This standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

(12) Proposals for any principal marine structure use, any residential joint- and/or shared-use 
pier, or any residential-development-use pier require Planning Board approval. 

(13) A residential development containing five or more lots in a zone permitting a residential-
development-use pier may construct only one residential-development-use pier. 

(14) Commercial development of the shorefront must provide for access by the general public 
as part of a shorefront development plan. 

(15) Only one pier, ramp and float structure is permitted on any noncommercial or 
nonindustrial lot. 

Findings: These standards are not applicable to the Application because the Application only 
proposes moored floats located below the highest annual tide and does not propose the 
construction of any piers or structures falling under the Shorefront Development Plan. 

Conclusion: N/A 

(16) Marine-related permanent structures located below the mean low-water line require the 
following permits, leases and approvals: 

a. Port Authority approval; 
b. Department of Environmental Protection permit pursuant to the Natural Resources 

Protection Act, 38 M.R.S.A. § 480-C; 
c. Army Corps of Engineers permit; 
d. Maine State Department of Conservation, Bureau of Parks and Lands, Submerged 

Land Coordinator approval; and 
e. Building permit. 

Findings: The Application contains the required authorization from the Army Corps of Engineers 
pursuant to Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act.  The Development does not require permits 
from the Department of Environmental Protection or Submerged Land Coordinator approval.  The 
Applicant will obtain all necessary building permits prior to beginning construction of the 
Development.  The Application [has / has not] been approved by the Port Authority based on its 
[approval / denial] of the waiver from the maximum dimensions allowed for moored floats under 
Section 3.12.1.C of the Rules and Regulations.  



8 
19197483.8 

Conclusion: This standard [has / has not] been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

(17) Any other performance standards as enumerated in the Port Authority’s rules and 
regulations. 

Findings: The Application proposed moored floats that are larger than those permitted under 
Section 3.12.1.C of the Rules and Regulations.  The Port Authority has [approved / denied] the 
Applicant’s request for a waiver from the applicable maximum dimensions. 
Conclusion: This standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 
Port Authority Rules and Regulations, Performance Standards (§ 4.7) 

§ 4.7.1. All applications for permits under this section must comply wholly with the requirements 
of Title 16, §3.2.17 (Shoreland Overlay Zone), and Title 38 MRS §435-439, and any other 
applicable federal or state requirements. These requirements apply to all development within 250 
feet, horizontal distance, of the normal high-water mark of any river or saltwater body. These 
requirements also apply to any structure built on, over, or abutting a dock wharf or pier, or any 
other structure extending beyond the normal high- water mark of a water body or within a 
coastal wetland shown on the Official Shoreland Zoning Map. 

Findings: The Application has satisfied all applicable standards of Title 16 and any other state or 
federal requirements. [The Application has not satisfied all applicable standards of Title 16, 
including those provided by Section 16.9.2(D)(5-7) and (16-17).] 
Conclusion: This standard has been met. 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of          in favor;           against;          abstaining. Motion is [Approved / Denied] 

§ 4.7.2. The construction of any piers, docks, wharves, and other structures and uses extending 
over or beyond the normal high-water mark of a water body or within a wetland must comply 
with all applicable requirements of Title 16. 
§ 4.7.3. Non-commercial private piers may have a maximum width of 6 feet as measured parallel 
to the shoreline and be limited to the minimum size necessary to accomplish their purpose. 
Except for temporary ramps and floats, the total length of a ramp, pier and float structure may 
not extend more than 150 feet beyond the normal high-water mark and piers not extend more 
than 100 feet beyond the normal high-water mark nor extend below the mean low water mark, 
whichever is shorter. 
§ 4.7.4. The maximum height of the pier deck may not exceed six (6) feet above the normal high-
water mark, and the handrails not exceed 42" without the specific approval of the Port Authority. 
§ 4.7.5. Commercial piers are limited to the minimum size necessary to accomplish their purpose. 
They may not extend beyond the mean low water mark except with credible proof by the applicant 
that the extension is necessary for the water-dependent use of the pier. The maximum height of 
the pier deck may not exceed six (6) feet above mean high water mark and the handrails not 
exceed 42", without a showing of necessity and specific approval of the Port Authority. 
Documentation required for an application for a commercial pier, in addition to all other 



9 
19197483.8 

requirements of these Rules and Regulations, must set forth credible proof of the commercial 
usage and include at least the following: 
§ 4.7.6. Piers, wharves, and pilings must be set back at least 25 feet from property lines and 50 
feet from other structures that are fixed in place below the normal high- water mark and not 
owned or controlled by the applicant unless a letter of permission is granted by abutting or other 
controlling property owner. If abutting property owners reach a mutual agreement regarding 
structures which have a lesser setback, which does not interfere with navigation, is practical and 
is consistent with the intent of these regulations, that setback may be authorized by the Port 
Authority if the applicant agrees to record any ensuing permit (which will have that agreement as 
a condition) and the abutters' letters of no objection, with the Registrar of Deeds, or other 
appropriate official charged with the responsibility for maintaining records of title to or interest 
in real property in the Town 

Findings: These standards are not applicable because the Application does not propose the 
construction of any commercial or non-commercial private piers, docks, wharves or other 
structures beyond the normal high-water mark or within a wetland. 

Conclusion: N/A 
 
 
MAIN MOTION: 
Motion: Based on the foregoing Findings and Conclusions, the Applicant’s Piers, Wharfs, Floats 
and other Marine-Related Structures Application proposing twelve (12) 8’ x 80’ floats and one (1) 
8’ x 160’ float at 48 Bowen Road (Tax Map 17, Lot 10) is approved, [subject to the following 
conditions]: 

 
[Conditions of Approval (to be included on the final plan to be recorded): 
1)   ] 

 
 
Second: 
Vote: Vote of       in favor     against       abstaining 
 

APPROVED BY THE KITTERY PORT AUTHORITY ON OCTOBER 13th, 2022. 
 

 
 
             

BY:  Charles Patten, Chair 
Kittery Port Authority 

 
NOTICE OF APPEAL RIGHTS: The Applicant has the right to request reconsideration of 
this decision within fifteen (15) days of its issuance pursuant to the Kittery Port Authority 
Rules and Regulations, Section 7.2.  The Applicant and any aggrieved party has the right to 
appeal this decision within forty-five (45) days of its issuance pursuant to the Kittery Port 
Authority Rules and Regulations, Section 7.3. 



 
Benjamin E. Ford 
Partner 
bford@archipelagolaw.com 
(207) 558-0102 

22 Free Street, Ste 403 
Portland, Maine 04101 

 

 
September 15, 2022 

 
Via Fedex and email to cvarao@kitteryme.org 
 
Charles Patten, Vice Chair 
Kittery Port Authority 
200 Rogers Road 
Kittery, ME 03904 
 

RE: Supplemental Information in Support of SHM Kittery Point, LLC’s Pending 
Application  

 
Dear Vice Chair Patten: 
 
 Enclosed please find 10 copies of documents to supplement SHM Kittery Point, LLC’s 
pending application for the installation of floats. Included in this packet are the following 
documents: 
  

Exhibit A: Additional engineering documents showing the specific design of the floats, 
the anchoring pattern, a cross section demonstrating the use of sentinel weights, the 
proximity of each float to the next, and the amount of swing space that will be conserved 
by the implementation of the float system  
Exhibit B: A mooring plan from the Town of Yarmouth showing the town’s intent to 
convert most of the moorings in the Town Landing Basin to floats 
Exhibit C: Letters of support from the community 
Exhibit D: A letter from Thomas Allen, President of Kittery Point Yacht Yard Corp. 
authorizing the transfer of the US Army Corp Permit to SHM Kittery Point, LLC  

 
 We would appreciate your including these documents in the applicant’s file and 
rescheduling a hearing at the next meeting which we understand to be October 6, 2022. 
 
 
      Sincerely,  
 
 
      Benjamin E. Ford 
 
 

Law   •   Science   •   Policy 
 

www.ArchipelagoNA.com 



APPROXIM
ATE INFORM

AL CHANNEL

BACK CHANNEL

PROPOSED 8' X 80' MOORED FLOAT (TYP)

APPROX. SWING CIRCLE OF MOORINGS TO BE REMOVED

C
IV

IL
W

O
R

K
S

 N
E

W
 E

N
G

L
A

N
D

C
IV

IL
 &

 W
A

T
E

R
F

R
O

N
T

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G

1
8
1
 W

a
ts

o
n
 R

o
a
d
, 
P

O
 B

o
x
 1

1
6
6

D
o
v
e
r,
 N

e
w

 H
a
m

p
s
h
ir
e
  

0
3
8
2
1

6
0
3
.7

4
9
.0

4
4
3

WF - 1

T
A

X
 M

A
P

 1
7
, 
L
O

T
 1

0

M
O

O
R

E
D

 F
L
O

A
T

S
S

A
F

E
 H

A
R

B
O

R
 K

IT
T

E
R

 P
O

IN
T

K
IT

T
E

R
Y
, 
M

E
Y

O
R

K
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
B

A
C

K
 C

H
A

N
N

E
L

S
H

M
, 

K
IT

T
E

R
Y

 P
O

IN
T

 L
L

C
4

8
 B

o
w

e
n

 R
o

a
d

K
it
te

ry
, 
M

E
 0

3
9

0
4

125 0

(FEET)

125 250

A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
A

T
E

NW E

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

NOTES:

1. REFERENCE PLAN: X1:PROPOSED, 2-7-2022, WITH PROPOSED FLOAT

LAYOUTS & CHANNEL LAYOUT.

2. EXISTING SWING CIRCLES BASED ON 30’ GROUND TACKLE OFFSET, 15’

PENNANT, 35’ BOAT.

3. NEW MOORING DESIGN FOR PEAK WIND AND CURRENT LOADS BASED ON

ONE 40 FT BOAT AND ONE 28 FT BOAT PER FLOAT IN STORM CONDITION.

ADDITIONAL BOATS PROPOSED IN LIGHT CONDITIONS.

4. TYPICAL FLOAT SIZE PROPOSED IS 8 FT X 80 FT.

5. FLOATS WILL MOVE AND SPACINGS ARE APPROXIMATE.



APPROXIM
ATE INFORM

AL CHANNEL

BACK CHANNEL

PROPOSED 8' X 80' MOORED FLOAT (TYP)

1
0
4
 ft

113 ft

116 ft
99 ft

66 ft

128 ft

274 ft

72 ft

84 ft

133 ft

1
3
0
 f
t

1
2
5

 f
t

15
0 

ft

9
2
 ft

1
9
0
 f
t

6
7
 f
t

1
0
4
 f
t

C
IV

IL
W

O
R

K
S

 N
E

W
 E

N
G

L
A

N
D

C
IV

IL
 &

 W
A

T
E

R
F

R
O

N
T

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G

1
8
1
 W

a
ts

o
n
 R

o
a
d
, 
P

O
 B

o
x
 1

1
6
6

D
o
v
e
r,
 N

e
w

 H
a
m

p
s
h
ir
e
  

0
3
8
2
1

6
0
3
.7

4
9
.0

4
4
3

WF - 2

T
A

X
 M

A
P

 1
7
, 
L
O

T
 1

0

M
O

O
R

E
D

 F
L
O

A
T

S
S

A
F

E
 H

A
R

B
O

R
 K

IT
T

E
R

 P
O

IN
T

K
IT

T
E

R
Y
, 
M

E
Y

O
R

K
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
B

A
C

K
 C

H
A

N
N

E
L

S
H

M
, 

K
IT

T
E

R
Y

 P
O

IN
T

 L
L

C
4

8
 B

o
w

e
n

 R
o

a
d

K
it
te

ry
, 
M

E
 0

3
9

0
4

125 0

(FEET)

125 250

A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
A

T
E

NW E

NOTES:

1. REFERENCE PLAN: X1:PROPOSED, 2-7-2022, WITH PROPOSED FLOAT LAYOUTS & CHANNEL LAYOUT.

2. MOORING DESIGN FOR PEAK WIND AND CURRENT LOADS BASED ON ONE 40 FT BOAT AND ONE 28 FT BOAT PER

FLOAT IN STORM CONDITION. ADDITIONAL BOATS PROPOSED IN LIGHT CONDITIONS.

3. TYPICAL FLOAT SIZE PROPOSED IS 8 FT X 80 FT.

4. FLOATS WILL MOVE AND SPACINGS ARE APPROXIMATE.

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N



C
IV

IL
W

O
R

K
S

 N
E

W
 E

N
G

L
A

N
D

C
IV

IL
 &

 W
A

T
E

R
F

R
O

N
T

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G

1
8
1
 W

a
ts

o
n
 R

o
a
d
, 
P

O
 B

o
x
 1

1
6
6

D
o
v
e
r,
 N

e
w

 H
a
m

p
s
h
ir
e
  

0
3
8
2
1

6
0
3
.7

4
9
.0

4
4
3

WF - 3

T
A

X
 M

A
P

 1
7
, 
L
O

T
 1

0

M
O

O
R

E
D

 F
L
O

A
T

S
S

A
F

E
 H

A
R

B
O

R
 K

IT
T

E
R

 P
O

IN
T

K
IT

T
E

R
Y
, 
M

E
Y

O
R

K
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
B

A
C

K
 C

H
A

N
N

E
L

S
H

M
, 

K
IT

T
E

R
Y

 P
O

IN
T

 L
L

C
4

8
 B

o
w

e
n

 R
o

a
d

K
it
te

ry
, 
M

E
 0

3
9

0
4

NOTES:

1. MOORING DESIGN FOR PEAK WIND AND CURRENT LOADS BASED ON ONE 40 FT BOAT AND ONE 28 FT BOAT PER

FLOAT IN STORM CONDITION.

2. MOORING LAYOUT BASED ON AVERAGE WATER DEPTH AND ASSUMES SENTINEL BLOCKS ARE USED TO REDUCE

CHAIN LENGTHS BELOW CHAIN ONLY CATENARY LENGTHS.

8' x 80' FLOAT

MOORING CHAINS (TYP)

5,000 TO 8,000# STONE MOORING BLOCK ON SEABED (TYP)

4
5
°

(T
Y

P
)

FLOAT MOORING PLAN (TYP)

20 0 20 40 60

(FEET)

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N



C
IV

IL
W

O
R

K
S

 N
E

W
 E

N
G

L
A

N
D

C
IV

IL
 &

 W
A

T
E

R
F

R
O

N
T

 E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G

1
8
1
 W

a
ts

o
n
 R

o
a
d
, 
P

O
 B

o
x
 1

1
6
6

D
o
v
e
r,
 N

e
w

 H
a
m

p
s
h
ir
e
  

0
3
8
2
1

6
0
3
.7

4
9
.0

4
4
3

WF - 4

T
A

X
 M

A
P

 1
7
, 
L
O

T
 1

0

M
O

O
R

E
D

 F
L
O

A
T

S
S

A
F

E
 H

A
R

B
O

R
 K

IT
T

E
R

 P
O

IN
T

K
IT

T
E

R
Y
, 
M

E
Y

O
R

K
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
B

A
C

K
 C

H
A

N
N

E
L

S
H

M
, 

K
IT

T
E

R
Y

 P
O

IN
T

 L
L

C
4

8
 B

o
w

e
n

 R
o

a
d

K
it
te

ry
, 
M

E
 0

3
9

0
4

FLOAT MOORING SECTION (TYP)

FLOAT

WATER SURFACE (VARIES)

SCHEMATIC MOORING CHAIN - HIGH TIDE WITH CURRENT LOAD

SENTINEL BLOCK

SCHEMATIC MOORING CHAIN - HIGH TIDE WITH CURRENT LOAD

SEABED (SCHEMATIC)

DOCKED BOAT

MOORING BLOCK (TYP)

48 0

(FEET)

8 16

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N



CIVILWORKS NEW ENGLAND
CIVIL & WATERFRONT ENGINEERING

181 Watson Road, PO Box 1166

Dover, New Hampshire  03821

603.749.0443

WF - 5TAX MAP 17, LOT 10

MOORED FLOATS
SAFE HARBOR KITTER POINT

KITTERY, ME
YORK COUNTY
BACK CHANNEL

SHM, KITTERY POINT LLC
48 Bowen Road

Kittery, ME 03904

FLOAT PLAN DETAILS (TYP)

8
.0

 f
t

80.8 ft

26.6 ft (TYP)

HEAVY DUTY HINGE (TYP)
SCHEMATIC FLOTATION UNITS (TYP)

MOORING CHAIN KEEPS

TIMBER FRAMING

HEAVY DUTY HINGE (TYP)

( FEET )

04 4 8 16

8.0 ft

TIMBER FRAMING (TYP)

TIMBER DECKING (TYP)

CLEATS (TYP)

ROTO-MOLDED PLASTIC

FLOAT UNITS (TYP)

FLOAT SECTION DETAILS (TYP)

( FEET )

02 2 4 8

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION



E6CORJLC
Oval

E6CORJLC
Oval

E6CORJLC
Oval

E6CORJLC
Oval

E6CORJLC
Oval





From :  Mike MacKenzie 

To:  Tom and Jason 

Ref:  Back Channel  Improvements 

 

Dear Tom and Jason, 

Thank you for updating me on the ACOE approval for pending improvements to the Back Channel.  I 
believe the investment in creating a defined channel and added navigation space be converting 14 
swinging moorings to fixed floats will be well received be the boating community, as will any additional 
berthing capacity it may provide.  Also, your sensitivity to improvements that have an ecological benefit 
is appreciated.  Preservation of this resource and the boatyard and marina are important to us.  If there 
is anything that I can do to support this effort please let me know. 

 

Regards, 

 

Mike MacKenzie 

Owner of “Just One More V” 

July 31, 2022 

 

 






















































































































	Hendrickson email of support.pdf
	KPA_48 Bowen Rd_DRAFT FOF_Public Hearing_092022.pdf
	For: 48 Bowen Road, TAX MAP 17, LOT 10
	Re: Shoreland Development Plan Review: Piers, Wharfs, Floats and Other Marine-Related Structures
	FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS

	KPA Meeting Materials Packet 10.6.22.pdf
	2022.10.06 KPA Agenda.pdf
	KITTERY, ME 03904

	8-4-2022 MINS.pdf
	Ford to Harbor Commission Re Supplimental Materials.pdf
	SHM Engineering Drawings.pdf
	SHM KP drawing1 9-15-22
	SHM KP drawing2 9-15-22
	SHM KP drawing3 9-15-22
	SHM KP drawing4 9-15-22

	YarmouthTownLanding Pony Dock Plan.pdf
	Lechner Letter of Support.pdf
	Mackenzie Letter of Support.pdf
	Mocklis Letter of Support.pdf
	Allen to ACOE Trafer Permit to SHM.pdf
	48 Bowen Rd KPA app 6.15.2022.pdf
	20220615111440661.pdf
	20220615111628328.pdf



